

Dinas a Sir Abertawe

Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod

Panel Ariannu Allanol

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgor 5 - Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 3 Hydref 2018

Amser: 2.00 pm

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd Rob Stewart

Aelodaeth:

Cynghorwyr: M C Child, W Evans, R Francis-Davies, D H Hopkins, A S Lewis, C E Lloyd, J A Raynor, M Sherwood a/ac M Thomas

Hefyd yn gwahodd: Cynghorwyr J E Burtonshaw & E J King

Agenda

Rhif y Dudalen.

1 Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

Ewropeaidd ac Allanol.

2 Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol. www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau

	www.abertawe.gov.uk/Datgelladadbdddlafiffad	
3	Cofnodion: Cymeradwyo a llofnodi, fel cofnod cywir, gofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol.	1 - 2
4	Cais Buddsoddi i Arbed Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Hwb Gwybodaeth, Cyngor a Chymorth Amlddisgyblaethol, Integredig.	3 - 9
5	Cais Buddsoddi i Arbed Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Prosiect Canfod Teuluoedd.	10 - 19
6	Y Gronfa Gofal Integredig: Cyllid Dementia 2018/19.	20 - 25
7	Rhaglen Ddysgu 3 Blynedd Arfaethedig - Oriel Gelf Glynn Vivian - Drafftio'r Dyfodol.	26 - 32
8	Gwahardd y cyhoedd.	33 - 36
9	Trosolwg o'r Ceisiadau Presennol a'r Rhai Sydd ar Ddod am Arian	37 - 62

Cyfarfod Nesaf: Dydd Mercher, 7 Tachwedd 2018 ar 2.00 pm

Huw Evans

Huw Ears

Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Dydd Iau, 27 Medi 2018

Cyswllt: Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - 01792 636923



Agenda Item 3



City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the External Funding Panel

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea

Wednesday, 1 August 2018 at 2.00 pm

Present: Councillor J A Raynor (Chair Pro Tem) presided until Minute No.

60

Councillor R C Stewart (Chair) Presided from Minute No. 60

Councillor(s)Councillor(s)Councillor(s)J E BurtonshawM C ChildE J KingA S LewisJ A RaynorM Thomas

Officer(s)

Ben George Transport Strategy Officer

Richard Horlock Economic Development & External Funding Clare James Economic Development & Projects Officer

Chloe Lewis Transportation

Paul Meller Strategic Planning and Natural Environment

Lyndsay Thomas Senior Lawyer

Debbie Smith Deputy Chief Legal Officer

Gaynor Winsor Accountant

Samantha Woon Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for Absence

Councillor(s): W Evans, R Francis-Davies and D H Hopkins and M Sherwood

58 Election of Chair Pro Tem.

Councillor J A Raynor was elected Chair Pro Tem.

Councillor J A Raynor (Chair Pro Tem) presided.

59 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea, the following interests were declared:

Councillor E J King declared a personal interest in Minute 61 'Active Travel Fund Bid 2018/19' as an employee of the DVLA.

Councillor R S Stewart declared a personal interest in Minute 61 'Active Travel Fund Bid 2018/19' as an employee of the DVLA.

Councillor R S Stewart (Chair) presided.

Minutes of the External Funding Panel (01.08.2018) Cont'd

60 Minutes.

Resolved that the Minutes of the External Funding Panel held on 4 July 2018 be approved and signed as a correct record.

61 Active Travel Fund Bid 2018/19.

The Transport Strategy Officer presented a report which sought approval in respect of the funding application for the Active Travel Fund 2018/19.

He detailed the background, the bids submitted and details of the proposed scheme.

Members asked questions of the Officer who responded accordingly.

Resolved that the Active Travel Fund 2018/19 be approved.

Overview of Current and Forthcoming European and External Funding Applications.

Colleagues from the Economic Development and External Funding Team and Strategic Planning and Natural Environment provided an update on planned European and other External funding applications.

Members asked questions of the Officers who responded accordingly.

Resolved that:

- 1. the submission of business plans to secure funding from the WG Building for the Future programme to refurbish Kings Building, Orchard House and the former BHS building be **approved**.
- 2. the submission of application forms to the WG Targeted Regeneration Investment (TRI) Programme to establish and lead the Property Enhancement Development Grant (PEDG) and Sustainable Living Grant (SLG) on behalf of the region be **approved**.
- 3. the submission of applications to Natural Resources Wales grant open-call to deliver the Gower Hedgerow Hub, Our Nature: Our Future, and Swansea Wildlife Volunteers projects be **approved**.
- 4. The panel supports Swansea Council adopting the lead role in the Primrose Park project and the submission of re-profile to secure funding from WREN to deliver the project.

The meeting	ended	at 2.34	pm
-------------	-------	---------	----

Chair

Agenda Item 4



Report of the Director of Social Services

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Welsh Government Invest to Save Bid for Multidisciplined Integrated Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Hub

Purpose: To approve the funding application for the WG

Invest to Save expression of interest for

Integrated IAA Hub

Policy Framework: Social Services and Wellbeing Act Wales (2014)

Consultation: Access to Services, Finance, Legal and the

Family Support Continuum Steering Group

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that the External Funding

Panel approve the Integrated IAA Hub application

Report Author: Jane Whitmore and Gemma Whyley

Finance Officer: Chris Davies

Legal Officer: Debbie Smith

Access to Services Officer: Catherine Window

1. Introduction

- 1.1. Welsh Government's Invest to Save Fund for 2018-19 bidding round opened in July 2018. Since 2009 the fund has supported projects across a number of areas including:
 - Procurement;
 - ICT;
 - Workforce:
 - Improving ways of working; and
 - Service delivery.

The Invest to Save Fund has allocated £174 million to over 180 projects since 2009 and the majority of Welsh public sector organisations have used the fund to support some of their initiatives.

- 1.2. This financial year the Fund has up to £5 million available to distribute to support the right projects which are ready for implementation. All projects will be considered however they are particularly interested this year in projects which have the potential to make an impact either regionally or nationally or which will improve the outcomes for looked after children
- 1.3. A funding bid for the Integrated IAA Hub was submitted to the Welsh Government Invest to Save as an expression of interest on the 30th July 2018 in accordance with guidance provided from the Welsh Government.
- 1.4. The bid asks for support in developing an Integrated Hub to manage Information, Advice and Assistance across the Continuum of Support in Swansea, to ensure families receive the right support at the right time.

2. Current Service and Key Issues

- 2.1. Our Information, Advice and Assistance Service (IA&A) is available to the public and also to other professionals and provides
 - **Information** We can provide information about universal, community and preventative support services to help people make informed choices about their well-being. You do not have to give the personal details of the child and family to get information.
 - Advice If children and families have particular needs we can start an
 assessment by having a 'What Matters' discussion to help families
 and/or professionals to think about how to improve their situation. We
 can help to explore options that may come from friends and family,
 professionals or any other early intervention and prevention services.
 - Assistance this is where a person takes action with a family to help them or to access support services for children, young people or families on their behalf. With parents/carers consent then I,A&A can make a referral directly to a service on the behalf of the family or arrange for a meeting so the appropriate support can be identified.
- 2.2. Phone lines are operated by qualified social workers who will listen to issues, get an understanding of the needs of our families and provide information, advice or assistance on who can help from social services, health, youth offending service, education, police, early intervention and prevention services and the third sector.
- 2.3. In addition to IAA, the local authority has other services, which act as 'front doors' for specific themes. They are listed below:
 - Domestic Abuse Hub receives referrals directly from the Police for issues relating to domestic abuse. This service has recently undergone a re-structure and is now effective in managing the right demand, which ensures children and families are having the right support at the right

time. This Hub does not currently take demand from the public but there is scope to broaden this in future.

- Under 11's Single Point of Entry receives referrals from professionals and families who do not meet the threshold for statutory intervention. This service allocates directly into our Team Around the Family (TAF) team and Family Wellbeing Team (FWT) in addition to other early help services for things like parenting support. A large number of referrals to this service are made from the IAA team.
- Over 11's Evolve Service receives referrals directly from schools and operates within the community to support children of secondary school age. This service also receive a large number of referrals from the IAA team.
- 2.4. These front door services manage allocation into their own teams and there are clear referral pathways in place to support staff to 'pass on' referrals but there is a lack of consistency in closing the loop on some of the more complex cases which may have a variety of needs. The inability to refer directly between teams (i.e. IAA cannot refer directly into TAF) and the inconsistency in tracking cases, which are passed between services, can often lead to drift resulting in cases escalating to statutory services.
- 2.5. This is further complicated by the different eligibility criteria and thresholds adopted by services. Whilst this is clearly identified and understood within specific services, there is a lack of understanding on a multi-agency perspective on what these eligibility criteria are across the whole system. A scatter-gun approach to referrals across different professionals can happen as a result of this.
- 2.6. The current systems in place are not effectively set-up to support staff in understanding 'what matters' to families. There are examples of when the identifying need presented at the point of referral differs to the underlying support that the family want and as a result needs are often unmet resulting in cases escalating into statutory services that could potentially have been avoided.
- 2.7. Recent performance information identified that IAA received a total of 12,675 call contacts in 17/18. These came from a number of different sources including police, health, families and schools. Of these calls, 4971 came to the team for information only, 3786 for advice,1175 for assistance which resulted in further contacts and 1165 were referred into statutory services.
- 2.8. On average families experience up to 40 contacts, 12 referrals and 3 pass-backs/hand offs throughout their journey. It is also evident that an average of 12 professionals could be involved with a particular family yet, in some cases, they hadn't received an intervention that they wanted and/or needed.

- 2.9. A costing exercise determined that each contact or referral equated to an average of 30 minutes worth of professional time and each pass back equated to an average of 1 hours' worth of professional time. It was identified that on average the total time taken to support these particular cases was upwards of 29 hours and in some extreme cases this time reached 100 hours. The cost to the Local Authority to manage this is estimated at over £666 per case the total number of cases that experience this is approximately 2,340 per year costing a total of £1.5 million per annum to the local authority.
- 2.10. The proposal aims to filter this information so that the right demand is being worked with and understand need more effectively at the initial point of contact in an effort to allocate directly to the right service. The expectation is that this will have an impact on the number of contacts, referrals and professionals involved with these types of cases and could result in financial benefit across the local authority and other partners.

3. Proposal

- 3.1. The proposal is to resource, refocus and expand the current IAA team into a multi-disciplinary team of staff who will be co-located within an Integrated IAA Hub. The team will be better able to manage demand and the flow of information through the team until the point of allocation or assessment is expected to be far quicker and more effective.
- 3.2. It is anticipated that this will allow us to manage demand more effectively by ensuring the team only deal with appropriate calls, that family's needs are understood quickly and clearly and that cases are allocated to the right team to support in a timely manner.
- 3.3. By co-locating a team across the whole system, officers from multi-agencies will be able to clearly identify cases that meet eligibility criteria for certain services. The hub will allocate effectively through joint decision making based on need, eligibility and availability, ultimately reducing the number of pass backs across the system.
- 3.4. Ultimately, the new process of identifying what matters and allocating support based on need will provide families with a smoother journey through our services. Placing families at the centre of decision-making and exploring options together will help clarify what support is being offered any why. Through this change professionals across a number of agencies will work together to support families to live happy, healthy and safe lives with help from the right people at the right time, if and when they need it.
- 3.5. The reduction in system waste as a result of this pilot will contribute to the organisation financially. Based on the costs above we estimate that the cost of the flow in the new system would be approximately £234.23 per case, and applying this to our average number of cases annually of 2340 indicated that this would amount annually to £548,098. This would realise a cost saving of approximately 1 million annually.

4. Legislative Requirements

- 4.1. The IAA service is a requirement of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act and must, as a minimum, include the publication of information advice and assistance. The service currently operates in this way and provides information, advice and assistance on a range of topics related to accessing support for children and families and supports families and professionals to raise safeguarding concerns around the children in their care.
- 4.2. According to the Act, IAA must, 'promote early intervention and prevention to ensure that people of all ages can be better supported to achieve their personal outcomes, and explore options for meeting their care and support needs. It should be considered to be a preventative service in its own right through the provision of high quality and timely information, advice and assistance.' (SSWB Act part 2 section 5)
- 4.3. The proposal would support the IAA team to focus on preventing escalation through appropriate allocation to early intervention services. Understanding 'what matters' will promote early identification of need and support people to meet their wellbeing outcomes by offering support in a more timely way.
- 4.4. By placing families at the centre of decision-making, IAA will encourage the voice of the child to be heard and allow for a more joined up approach to exploring options and making decisions.
- 4.5. Additionally, the proposal meets the fundamental principles of the Act:
 - Voice and control Understanding 'what matters' as early as
 possible and using this as a basis for exploring options will ensure that
 families have control in their own support and that their voices are at
 the centre of any decision making.
 - Prevention and early intervention Working more closely together
 with colleagues across different agencies will allow easier allocation
 into early help services to ensure intervention is appropriate and timely
 so we can prevent needs escalating.
 - Well-being A child and/or families wellbeing outcomes and goals will be understood through the 'what matters' conversation and will be the driving force behind any intervention. These will continue to be a focus through the assessment and intervention a family receives and will involve consistent and frequent reviewing.
 - **Co-production** Decisions and intervention will be coproduced and directed by the family where it is appropriate to do so.

5. Equality and Engagement Implications

- 5.1. The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.

- Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- 5.2. Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.
- 5.3. We have completed an EIA Screening Form and will complete a full EIA report pending the success of the pilot and the invest to save bid which will inform service change. This will include engagements and consultation with service users.

6. Financial Implications

6.1. The total costs of the complete implementation of the programme over 3½ years is £1,612,370 as outlined in the following table:

Item	Cost (including on-costs) for Total Project £		
Staffing	1,482,370		
Premises relocation and IT	80,000		
Consultancy and evaluation	30,000		
Project Management/finance/legal/HR	20,000		
TOTAL	1,612,370		

- 6.2. The local authority is seeking £806,185 from the Invest to Save programme which is 50% of the total cost of the development and implementation of a multi-disciplinary integrated information, advice and assistance hub.
- 6.3. The indicative drawn down of the funds, if successful, is outlined in the table below

	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22
TOTAL	£126,185	£350,000	£220,000	£110,000

6.4. Pending successful application to the WG Invest to Save funding a detailed budget profile will be submitted outlining when funds would be drawn down. This would be reviewed annually in line with our budget setting process and the MTFP.

- 6.5. The remaining 50% of costs would be met by re-aligning already existing resource mainly within Child and Family Service Budget lines and a smaller amount in Poverty & Prevention budget lines with the view to reviewing this annually as it is anticipated that if the offer is correct then demand will be reduced.
- 6.6. A continually annual cycle of review will be implemented to enable us to move resource around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future to enable the investment to be re-paid.
- 6.7. This will help us to manage demand in a more effective, responsive way and meet budget saving targets as austerity continues. Ongoing annual review will inform decisions in terms of future commissioning and enable us to move resources around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future. This will in turn, enable the investment to be re-paid within a 5 year period.
- 6.8. The repayment profile has been calculated based on when potential cash saving would be realised as implementation progresses over the next 5 years.

	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
	£	£	£	£
Revenue	80,000	220,000	250,000	256,185

6.9 We would only utilise Invest to Save funds if needed, this is the total amount we have sought, however this is pending WG approval.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 It will be necessary to ensure that all terms and conditions attached to WG Invest to Save grant funding are complied with and that the Council's Financial Procedure Rules Regarding Grant Applications and Acceptances are followed, if successful.

Background Papers:

Invest to Save Expression of Interest EIA form

Appendices:

None

Agenda Item 5



Report of the Director of Social Services

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Welsh Government Invest to Save Bid for Family Finding Project

Purpose: To approve the funding application for the WG

Invest to Save expression of interest for the

Family Finding Project

Policy Framework: Social Services and Wellbeing Act Wales (2014)

Signs of Safety Framework

Consultation: Access to Services, Finance, Legal and the

Family Support Continuum Steering Group

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that the External Funding

Panel approve the Family Finding Invest to Save

application

Report Author: Donna Houlston

Finance Officer: Chris Davies

Legal Officer: Debbie Smith

Access to Services Officer: Rhian Millar

1. Introduction

- 1.1. Welsh Government's Invest to Save Fund for 2018-19 bidding round opening in July 2018. Since 2009 the fund has supported projects across a number of areas including:
 - Procurement;
 - ICT;
 - Workforce;
 - Improving ways of working; and
 - Service delivery.

The Invest to Save Fund has allocated £174 million to over 180 projects since 2009 and the majority of Welsh public sector organisations have used the fund to support some of their initiatives.

- 1.2. This financial year the Fund has up to £5 million available to distribute to support the right projects which are ready for implementation. All projects will be considered however they are particularly interested this year in projects which have the potential to make an impact either regionally or nationally or which will improve the outcomes for looked after children
- 1.3. A funding bid for the Family Finding Project was submitted to the Welsh Government Invest to Save as an expression of interest on the 30th July 2018 in accordance with guidance provided from the Welsh Government.
- 1.4. The bid asks for support in developing an innovative team to drive the implementation of the 'Family Finding' model in Swansea to support the reduction in number of looked after children.

2. Current Service and Key Issues

- 2.1. Among the key strategic priorities for Child and Family Services (and Swansea Council more generally) are the Safe Looked After Children Reduction Strategy and the Sustainable Swansea programme. There are strong interdependencies between these initiatives and their prospects for success hinge on our capacity to support greater numbers of families to care for their own children, where safe and appropriate to do so.
- 2.2. In 2016/17 the financial costs for Child and Family Services (not including the costs for partners in Education, Health etc.) of supporting our looked after population was approximately £23,000,000 around 65% of the total Departmental budget. If we do not reduce the need for children to become looked after there is a risk we will not have sufficient resources to consistently and effectively meet the needs of those who have to come into or are already in our care.
- 2.3. One of the primary ways for taking forward the above strategies and improving our capacity to support families to care for their own children has been the development and implementation of the Signs Of Safety (SOS) approach to practice.
- 2.4. Over the last 5 years Child and Family Services has been able to evidence considerable progress in terms of delivering its strategic objectives i.e. improving outcomes, reducing the number of looked after children, and ensuring financial sustainability. However progress has stalled in the last 18 months as a consequence of increasing social and financial pressures:-
- 2.5. The total numbers of children who are looked after in Swansea have grown in the last year:

Date	LAC
31st March 2017	481
30 th June 2017	492
30 th September 2017	478
31st December 2017	502
31st March 2018	522

- 2.6. Almost 200 children became looked after in Swansea last year. This is a high number to be able to ensure the right placement is always available at the right time. It is also a high number to ensure that we have sufficient resources to be financially sustainable.
- 2.7. Given the increasing numbers becoming looked after, the numbers of children looked after in high cost residential care placements has risen from 30 to 37.
- 2.8. To be financially sustainable, Child and Family Services needs to reduce the looked after population to 450 and the number in residential care needs to below 25 over the next 3 years.
- 2.9. It is important to acknowledge that this can only occur if our practice is strengthened. An essential component of the SOS practice framework is to identify and support a robust and committed family network. A recent review of the implementation of SOS in Swansea has recognised this to be the biggest gap in the successful delivery of the approach locally. As a result, it is thought that children are becoming looked after because we have failed to identify robust support networks and alternative informal family carers

3. Proposal

- 3.1. The proposal is to create an innovative team to drive the implementation of the 'Family Finding' model in Swansea. The team and senior managers will promote an integrated approach in order to enable the model to be embedded throughout the Department.
- 3.2. Family Finding is a set of strategies, tools, skills, values and beliefs created by Kevin Campbell. It is an evidence-based approach that is mandated by United States federal law. It has also been extensively implemented in a number of Canadian provinces.
- 3.3. Family Finding aims to ensure children's safety and wellbeing through strengthening family connections and support networks. The more a family is able to build support and resilience within their own network, the more effective and less time is needed of statutory services.

- 3.4. Family finding uses various search and engagement techniques to locate connections and stresses the importance of including family in decision-making. Family Finding engages with and enables families to have the responsibility for safety, permanence and wellbeing of the child .It is a model that helps create a strong foundation for collaborative family engagement and can be used across the continuum of child and family services involvement with a family.
- 3.5. The process identifies relatives and other supportive adults, including those who are currently estranged from or unknown to the child, especially those who are willing to become permanent connections for him/her. Upon completion of the process, children and young people have a range of commitments from non-paid adults who are able to provide permanency, sustainable relationships within a kinship system, and support in the transition to adulthood and beyond.
- 3.6. Keeping safety at the forefront and using a family-driven process, families are empowered to formulate highly realistic and sustainable plans to meet the long-term needs of children and young people.
- 3.7. Some of the outcomes that are expected to be achieved as a result of successful implementation of the Family Finding model include:
 - Reduced numbers of children becoming looked after.
 - Increased rates of reunification to family for children already looked after.
 - Improved well-being outcomes.
 - Improved placement stability (there are existing performance indicators for placement stability).
 - Quality transition out of the looked after system for care leavers.
 - A reduction in the number of children becoming looked after on more than one occasion.
 - Reduction in the number in high-cost residential care.
 - Stronger sense of belonging for children.
- 3.8. The model uses 6 steps which family finding workers assist children's social workers to implement. These are well-defined and tactical procedures and activities that are tracked with a fidelity tool. As an integrated approach the goal is to embed the principles, tools and strategies throughout practice in Swansea.
- 3.9. There has been 26 evaluations of the Family Finding model across America and Canada. Key finding of these evaluations include:-
 - Increased family contact and permanent connections.
 - Increased numbers of children adopted, re unified with family or placed with parent and returning home.
 - Developing functioning life time networks made up of relatives siblings and other important adults.

- Changes to general approaches to working with families
- 3.10. In Ontario, Canada, it was found that 91% of the 75 young people considered in a 2 year study are connected to at least one enduring non paid relationship of support expected to last a lifetime
- 3.11. Surveys regularly demonstrate considerable savings through achieving earlier permanence with families. Moreover, these level of results have been consistently replicated in the 26 Evaluations sites across America and Canada
- 3.12. The proposal will create savings by reducing the numbers of children who need to:-
 - enter care proceedings;
 - become looked after; and
 - be looked after in expensive independent foster and residential placements.
- 3.13. It will also help to reduce the average time children are looked after for.
- 3.14. For every placement with local authority foster carers that the project avoids then it will mean we avoid costs to the sum of £20,800 £23,400 per annum. For every placement with an independent foster agency this figure is £49,400 per annum and for every residential placement it is £169,000 per annum.
- 3.15. Swansea has ambitious targets that are necessary for financial sustainability for the size of its looked after children population (450), dependency on independent foster placements (nor more than 25%) and residential care population (no more than 25). If these are realised then the level of spend on placements will reduce considerably.
- 3.16. A reduction in the LAC population by 25 children for each of the next three years (thereby achieving the target of 450), this would mean savings on the cost of placements of approximately £815,000 per annum (a total avoidance of £2.445m by the end of year 3). Please note that this is only the direct costs of providing accommodation and does not capture the myriad of other costs associated with looking after a child.
- 3.17. By increasing our capacity to divert children from entering independent foster and residential care placements then there would be further potential savings. For instance, if the population in residential care fell from 35 to 25 as we hope this would realise annual savings of around £1,690,000.

4. Legislative Requirements

4.1. The Family Finding model supports the principles and ethos of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014 in relation to voice and control,

co-production, early intervention and prevention and promoting wellbeing. Moreover, it is entirely aligned with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

4.2. The model compliments the Care Crisis Review which considered the factors which have led to the numbers of children in care being at their highest since the implementation of the Children Act in 1989. The Review recommends that: local authorities better draw upon support from family and friends; that local authorities better promote their duty to support families to promote children's upbringing with their families; that local authorities make arrangements to support families to make safe plans for children; and that improvements need to be made in exploring potential carers within the child's family.

5. Equality and Engagement Implications

- 5.1. The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- 5.2. Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.
- 5.3. We have completed an EIA Screening Form and will complete a full EIA report pending the success of the pilot, which will include engagements and consultation with service users.

6. Financial Implications

6.1. The total costs of the project are £342,288 per annum equating to £1,026,864 over the course of 3 years as outlined in the following table:

Item	Cost (inc. on-costs)		
	per annum		
Family finding Boot Camp (x3) £15,000	£45,000		
Family meeting workshops (x3) £9,000	£27,000		
4 x Family Finding staff	£186,218		
Family Finding Manager	£62,338		
Young people's Family finding Boot Camp x3	£9,000		
£3,000 per year			
Principal Social Worker involvement in policies,	£6,101		
training, communications etc.			
Project management	£6,631		

TOTAL (annual cost)	£342,288
101AL (allitual cost)	2072,200

- 6.2. The local authority is seeking funding from Invest to Save totalling £750,000 which is 73% of the total costs of the development and implementation of the Family Finding Model in Swansea.
- 6.3. The remaining costs will be resourced within current budgets as shown below:

	2018-19 £	2019-20 £	2020-21 £	2021-22 £	Total
Invest to Save Bid	£125,000	£250,000	£250,000	£125,000	£750,000
Local Authority contribution	£46,000	£92,000	£92,000	£46,000	£276,000

- 6.4. A continually annual cycle of review will be implemented to enable us to move resource around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future to enable the investment to be re-paid.
- 6.5. This will help us to support children in a more responsive way and meet budget saving targets as austerity continues. Ongoing annual review will inform decisions in terms of future commissioning and enable us to move resources around to meet need and make the model sustainable for the future. This will in turn, enable the investment to be re-paid within a 4 year period.
- 6.6. The repayment profile of this funding is as follows:

	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
	£	£	£	£
Revenue	£100,000	£100,000	£250,000	£300,000

7. Legal Implications

7.1. It will be necessary to ensure that all terms and conditions attached to WG Invest to Save grant funding are complied with and that the Council's Financial Procedure Rules Regarding Grant Applications and Acceptances are followed, if successful.

Background Papers:

Invest to Save Expression of Interest

Appendices:

Appendix A - EIA Form

Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form – 2017/8 Appendix A

this form. If	you would	like further g	guidance pl		t the Access to
Services tear	n (see guida	nce for detai	IS).		
Section 1	a araa and di	rootoroto oro	vou fram?		
		rectorate are Family Service	•		
		es Directorate			
Directorate.	Oociai Ocivic	C3 Directorati	<u> </u>		
Q1(a) WHAT	ARE YOU S	CREENING F	OR RELEVA	ANCE?	
Service/	Policy/				
Function	Procedure	Project	Strategy	Plan	Proposal
/la\		 -	_	ı	I
(b) Please	name and <u>d</u>	<u>lescribe</u> here	:		
This proposal to begin a pro support the re	ject which wil	identify a po	tential new n		elsh Government ce delivery to
The project wi Swansea.	ill identify and	l implement a	Family Findi	ng Model of c	delivery in
The proposal a full EIA repo			•		ject progresses might have.
Q2(a) WHAT	DOES Q1a F	RELATE TO?			
	front line		front line	Indirect ba	
service	e delivery	service	delivery	service del	livery
[⊠ (H)] (M)] (L)
(b) DO YO	UR CUSTON	MERS/CLIENT	S ACCESS	THIS?	
Because they	Bec	ause they	Becau	se it is	On an internal
need to	W	ant to	automatically	•	basis
N 410			everyone in S		i.e. Staff
<u></u> (H)		(M)		(M)	(L)
Q3 WHAT	_	ENTIAL IMPA	_		_
		High Impact	Medium Impac		Don't know
Children/young p	oonlo (0.18)	(H) →	(M)	(L)	(H)
Children/young p Older people (50			H	\bowtie	H
Any other age gr	,	ΚĦ	\square		H
Disability		X H			H
Race (including r	efugees)	→ □		\square	Ħ
Asylum seekers	,	→ □		$\overline{\boxtimes}$	
Gypsies & travell	ers	→ □		\boxtimes	
Religion or (non-))belief ===	→		\boxtimes	
Sex					
Sexual Orientation					
•	Gender reassignment				
Welsh Language Poverty/social ex			H		H
Carers (inc. youn		→			H
Community cohe		→	47	Ħ	Ħ
Marriage & civil p		→ ☐ Pa	ge 17 📙	$\overline{\boxtimes}$	

Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form – 2017/8 Appendix A X Pregnancy and maternity **Q4** WHAT ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION / CO-PRODUCTIVE APPROACHES WILL YOU UNDERTAKE? Please provide details below – either of your planned activities or your reasons for not undertaking engagement This is an Invest to Save Bid which will support the implementation of a Family Finding Model in Swansea. Engagement, consultation and co-production will be built into the quarterly monitoring and review of the project and will inform a full EIA report to any changes in service provision which will have a direct impact on the public. Q5(a) HOW VISIBLE IS THIS INITIATIVE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC? High visibility Medium visibility Low visibility ___(H) (M) **⋈** (L) WHAT IS THE POTENTIAL RISK TO THE COUNCIL'S REPUTATION? (b) (Consider the following impacts – legal, financial, political, media, public perception etc...) High risk Medium risk Low risk **⋈** (L) ____ (**H**) **□** (M) Q6 Will this initiative have an impact (however minor) on any other Council service? ⊠ No If yes, please provide details below Yes Q7 **HOW DID YOU SCORE?** Please tick the relevant box MOSTLY H and/or M \longrightarrow HIGH PRIORITY \longrightarrow \square EIA to be completed Please go to Section 2 **MOSTLY L** LOW PRIORITY / □ Do not complete EIA **NOT RELEVANT** Please go to Q8 followed by Section 2 Q8 If you determine that this initiative is not relevant for an EIA report, you

Material of the relevant protected groups.

The screening is for an invest to save proposal to implement a Family Finding Model in Swansea. If successful, the project will seek to better understand the requirements of specific groups of service users to identify how the Model can support children and families in Swansea. This will be monitored regularly gaining insight from service providers, multiagency teams and service users over the next 12 months to inform a full EIA pending full implementation of the model.

Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form – 2017/8 Appendix A

Section 2

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service approval is only required via email – no electronic signatures or paper copies are needed.

oddd.
Screening completed by:
Name: Gemma Whyley
Job title: Project Manager
Date: 12 th September 2018
Approval by Head of Service:
Name: Julie Thomas
Position: Head of Child and Family Services
Date: 12th September 2018

Please return the completed form to accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Agenda Item 6



Report of the Director of Social Services

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Integrated Care Fund: Dementia Funding 2018/19

Purpose: To advise the Panel of the Integrated Care Fund

(ICF) Revenue Funding for Dementia services and projects in line with the National Dementia Action Plan across Western Bay region for

2018/19

Policy Framework: Social Service and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014

Government of Wales Act 2006

Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales)

Act 2015

Consultation: Access to Services, Finance, Legal.

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that the Panel retrospectively

approves the acceptance of the ICF funding for

dementia services in Swansea.

Report Author: Nicola Trotman

Finance Officer: Chris Davies

Legal Officer: Caritas Adere

Access to Services Officer: Rhian Miller

1. Introduction

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide an overview of the Integrated Care Fund (ICF) Revenue Funding for Dementia services and projects in line with the National Dementia Action Plan across Western Bay region for 2018/19

2. Integrated Care Fund for Dementia Schemes

- 2.1 In June, Welsh Government announced further ICF funding of £864,000 for 2018/19 for the Western Bay region specifically for dementia schemes that support the National Dementia Action Plan.
- 2.2 The letter from Welsh Government (WG) outlined an expectation that RPBs would take a fundamental look at the existing dementia services and care pathways in each area and develop services which addressed any gaps identified, in line with the plan.
- 2.3 The ICF guidance for Dementia funding states that the funding:
 - Should take into account the needs of the whole population, including those with protected characteristics;
 - must be used to support new or additional provision of services and ways of working must clearly demonstrate the additionality that will be delivered, with the impact evidenced in the quarterly returns required as part of the governance of the fund;
 - may be used to build on existing good practice and to increase the scale of provision of integrated services across Wales. It may also be used as pump-prime funding to assist transformation and change and to test out new models of delivery;
 - may be used to fund a range of projects, both small and large scale, to deliver the actions within the Dementia Action Plan;
 - can be used as revenue which supports capital funded projects e.g. staffing for new build provision.
- 2.4 As with core ICF funding, monies will be allocated to health boards within regional partnerships, but spending decisions must be taken collaboratively by the wider regional partnership board. The Dementia funding was reported to RPB in July and the prioritised scheme were agreed through the Western Bay governance, ensuring formal approvals were sought in line with the ICF guidance. The Dementia investment plan, which includes all Western Bay schemes, is included in **appendix**1. The schemes were submitted to WG on 31st July and formal approval is expected by the end of September.
- 2.5 WG have confirmed that unlike the ICF revenue core funding, Dementia Action Plan funding is to be provided on an ongoing basis. Western Bay partners have however agreed to develop a strategic approach to Dementia Services and on that basis mapping work is underway to identify where the gaps are. The schemes submitted to WG were therefore only for 2018/19, given this piece of work has not yet been completed. Schemes for 19/20 onwards will be determined once the strategic approach is

agreed and any future funding decisions will go through the Western Bay Governance, which includes the Western Bay Dementia Board.

3. Equality and Engagement Implications

- 3.1 The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- 3.2 Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.

4. Financial Implications

4.1 The total value of the Swansea schemes is £122,605, though this does not include the regional schemes. There is no match funding requirement.

5. Legal Implications

- 5.1 From April 2016, there was a requirement under Part 9 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act for the establishment of a statutory Regional Partnership Board (RPB). A report requesting approval of the establishment of the RPB Board and its membership was approved by the 3 Local Authority Cabinets and the Health Board in July 2016. The Western Bay Regional Partnership Board leads on the planning and use of the funding, as well as ensuring delivery, to maximise outcomes for people and the effective and efficient use of resources.
- WG ICF guidance states 'Regional partnership boards must put in place a Written Agreement to provide assurance that robust processes are in place to manage the effective delivery of ICF capital and revenue funds'. The written agreement has been completed and signed by the Chief Executive of ABMU and countersigned by the Finance Director and endorsed by Regional Partnership Board Chair. Addendum for the ICF Capital Funding to the original written agreement to be developed in conjunction with the finance and legal officers
- 5.3 The Authority has followed the terms and conditions laid out in the ICF revenue guidance and the ICF Dementia guidance.

Background Papers: None

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Western Bay Dementia Investment Plan

						Total Cost	Planned Expendit	Planned Expenditure 2017/2018					
Nu Nu	ame	Title of Scheme	Description of Scheme (including extension to an existing service/contract and related additionality)	Link to relevant Action in the Dementia Action Plan	Project Lead	(ICF Contribution Requested)	Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Measurable Outcomes	Key Delivery Milestones	
	D "1	Dementia Arts" - Developing Creative Arts Practices, Western Bay	Dementia Arts will support creative participation in the ARTS. The planned content will be engaging an opportunity to empower and inspire people with Dementia frencing stratic mediums. We will trapper confected below and their resident, and provide speculat training for cream and staff in the community control and the providence of the providence of the providence of the providence of the providence and we practic providence of the providence and we practic providence of the control and providence and we practic providence of these individuals and personal greatly imaginative for inscriat principations and providence of the providence of the providence of the control and providence of the MODIOLIE Support (2) which the providence of the	Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive early person centred care and support which is flexible	Amanda Fancourt	£6,000		2,000	2,000	2,000	Accession training in placetics on the first hand the first sea collecting motivation positive learning environment Assisting developed sensities goal with time Clock. Frame time schedule every life (staging) and evaluate project, its broaks. Leader Demonstration and agistance visual prototypes of each are project peace. Protograph. Leann plans and Evaluation Scheme of word. Student Assessment Common Learning and Common Co	6 MODING PRODUCT: 1 MODING COLLEGE 2018 - 3 fed day gar week. Day One. Received; workshop November 2018 - 0 fed day gar week. Day One. Scaliffication Day Two Salffication Day Two Salffication Day Two Salffication Day These Theathy Interaction Storydilling Septimize Theathy Interaction Storydilling Septimize Theathy Interaction Storydilling	
	D	Dementia Activities Co-ordinator Role pilot, Swansea	An acute was a savey unfamiliar environment for patients with those from to acut a not be a shown destinant of effects of their presentation of them is a person acquired present acute of the patients of the save and the save a	Staff have the skills to help them identify people with dements and to feel confident and competent in supporting individuals needs post-diagnosis	Anna Harries	£25,000		8,333	8,333	8,334	Reduced need for 1.1 Requests on bank system/ Acuty data Reduced indeemty after gargaston/ apitation Through Data reporting Reduced 1056 Reduced 1056 Captured through Clinical portal system Increased #8# saintainton Captured weetly as ward practice	Age. Advantage and agoing it in proof a park with 6 ill courts free from. Another implement and environce request on approved of noting. Another implement and environce request on approved of noting. Another implement and purposed to commence on start date. Another implement and purposed. On the advantage free proposed. Descriptions and the advantage of purposed. Descriptions are advantaged to the purposed of the purpos	
	D W	sstern Bay Dementia Training Framework, Western Bay	Building on existing work behind understains as part of the Western Bay Community Services Programme to General 200 Applications of the Community Services Programme to General 200 Applications of the Community Services Programme to General 200 Applications of the Community Services Programme to General 200 Applications of the Community Services Programme to General 200 Applications of the Community Services Programme and Services Pr	Staff have the slife to help them identify, appoint with demands and to feel confident and confident and confident and complete in supporting individuals needs post-diagnosis.	Lynne Doyle	£30,000		3,000	16,000	11,000	Soft in case haves have the daily to help then described people with committed and to self-confident and competent in supporting brieflouds's needs forestand number of comments friends, forestand number of comments friends, followed in the Good Work Learning and Development. Forestead to the Good Work Learning and Development. Foresteads to all self-damping large browns, for distall residence and specification of ordinarios. Yes distall residence and self-damping comments forestead or self-damping comments of the Government Apparent Comments and self-damping comments (Comments and comments and well being or people with comments and support needs and their cases.)	13 Cst 18 - 30% of taxl divines trained in Comments framely current demands training mappined against good work; 10 Agril 19 - complete red out of training in care homes and taxl drivers / digital case studies produced.	
	D	Carers (of people living with Dementia) Worker, Swansea	This is one from pilot, offering a personalistic linely some of access for support, specialising in carrier of someone living with dementia, thousing on enging carrier of ending special section for someone, shown the access and the special section of t	The wider population understands the challenges faced by people living with dementia. Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive any person centred care and opport which is flexible.	Emma Daniels	£16,551		1,870	7,091	7,590	More cares are identified, given preventative into 8 imported. Number of carest target of 200 - 59 and March 19 Reduced cares cities. 8 improved cares education Number of carest transport geology, released on 5 for submitted or cares transport. Sills.—59 and March 13 inches of the care submitted or cares to non-Numary Care submitted or cares from Numary Care submitted f	Project start — 1st Aug 18 fecciolment — Aug 18 fec	
	Ag Ag	e Connects Neath Port Talbot - EngAGE Demontia, Neath Port Talbot	Working with Dementia French and the Altheimer's Society, this plot project will train staff and volunteers involved in our Community Outreach Groups, Home Vising Service and Information Parties (building Neural Port Table Height 18, to become demention champions, Dementia assessment will also be delivered to project and extended on You for For Table Height 18, to become demention champions assessment and promote and communications. The searcement and promote interest of the Service Interest in the Service Interest Inte	People are aware of the early signs of dementa; the reportance of a sinely-diagnosis, the reportance of a sinely-diagnosis, three diagnosis to get high Those diagnosed with dimentals and their carers and families are able to receive early person centred care and support which is flexible	Dean Richards	£6,420			3,210	3,210	Deliver a demonstra training and awareness programme to 9 test find at Seubristers. 10 Test find at Seubristers. Deliverable writters manufactured and guidance on demonstra awareness and provention to 750 inches have been a seal processor to 1900 and the 1900 and 1900 an	Millitation Triminación (Programme Con definicar in port. 10 Conder 2013) (Programme Con definicar in port. 10 Conder 2013) (Programme Con definicar in port. 10 Conder 2013) (Update sal opticar participar (Service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar participar (Service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar participar (Service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar participar (Service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar participar (Service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar in demonstration of service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar in demonstration of service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update sal opticar in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in service in service in port. 10 Conder 2014) (Update of service in s	
	D	Understanding Dementia/ Dail Dementia, Neach Furt Talbot	Condita Marryl, level of 1 Targouith, is a lay community had in 197 with does cross border ending. Actual piles project in 2217 Identified general for the Upper demons and Terch Valley to be demonstal revolety formations. The new project will bad on the previous level giple project by againsting a part one works, with cooks, to develop this criteric. We will even with cream and framines affected by elements and with stateling and their desting projects of the controlled piles. The controlled piles are provided to provide address of an element and even and even the destination of the community for the controlled piles. The controlled piles are conducting even and the controlled piles are conducting research into Witth speakers and dementia.	These disposed with densests and their cere and tensiles are able to receive early serviced are and tensiles are able to receive early person certified are and support which is fisable.	Gill Webber	£25,720		4,368	10,526	10,326	increased joined-up working between community againstations, their sector and statutiony portions in a road and supporting provides a person-centred working and a sector and statution provides a present and another provides a present and another provides are research and more against provides and advantage and another provides are advantaged another provides and advantaged another another advantaged another another advantaged another another advantaged and advantaged and advantaged and advantaged another advantaged and advantaged and advantaged another advantaged and advantaged another advantaged and advantaged and advantaged and advantaged and advantaged another advantaged and advantaged and advantaged another advantaged and advantaged another advantaged and advantaged another advantaged another advantaged and advantaged another advant	Assignment of position of the control of the contro	
	D	Bridgend Resilient Communities, Bridgend	The project will half on the existing work artisely undertaken via the "Recilient Communities" gain created in partnership with the CVC and Third Sector Statishated for Group to develop social practicating apportunities in the community. The project will build so this learning and inlight developed with Althemory Society to develop Toment Terrifory Sectioning and equate to broader activation is a range of strents. It is all facility to the Ministry Section, Community certains and bistories folkings being to our occid interprise and third Sector partnerships. The appearant will include literate, such community certains and bistories folkings being to our occid interprise and their Section sections will be such as the section and section and the section and section and section and the section and section and section and	The wider population understands the challenges faced by people living with dementia.	Andrew Thomas	£30,000			15,000	15,000	Wider population to understand the challenges faced by people with dementia. Staff have the skills to help identify people with dementia and to feel confident and competent in supporting individuals* needs post tiggenosis. Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive early person centred care and support and support and its person.	Juguet 2011 - Project Initiation / partnership investing Specimen 2018 - Training and development plane (not to Discerebe 2018) Glober 2011 - Francis and Several principal for facility of the Control 2011- Francis partnership (Control 2011- Francis partnership	
		integrated day service for a specific policy with complex needs, as a study filling with dementia or cognitive impairment, Bridgend	These is committed a review of diago apportunities for other adults within frequent County planning, and of that oriene has indicated that we need to appositive opinions, the counting day practice, and great plant to a detail results or those people within a counting and precision of the proposition of the review has been designed by the counting and the counting and the counting properly hashed may be useful or a deal to access unineral recent with their communities. If the counting is the counting of the counting and the cou	Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive pre-emptive accessment and review person centred care and support which is flexible	Carmel Donovan	£89,205		19,600.70	34,802.15		People will be able to live at home longer improved diagnosis and timely interventions improved access to better information raised supervention and timely access to the control improved access to better information raised supervention and access to the control improved access to the control improved access to the control improved access to the control improved access to the control control to the control to the co	August. *A great model of care for multidisciplinary association and review day service for people with complex needs. **A present model of care for multidisciplinary association and review day service for people with complex needs. **A resultation association and their care: **a progress through the recultiment process. **Proling progress to a model a practice with existing day opportunities **A review progress to a model a practice with existing day opportunities. **A review process to a model a practice with existing day opportunities. **A review process to a model a practice with existing day opportunities. **A review process to a model a practice with existing day opportunities. **Control of the process of the proces	

Page 23

										*August 2018 - Job Discriptions finalised o initial Edit for second-ment sought it AU VITE band 4, 0, 6 WIT Band 4) of sequentions to Explain Paid and mobile splone placed of sequentions for Explain and mobile splone placed
91	Dementia Link Service, Bridgend	Creation of a team of practitioners within the Integrated Community Services to support Informal cavers and staff in their ability to provide person centers for people with demental and/or registrice impairment to enthance upon the already existing, well established work of the Community Demental Support Workers. The practitioners would be embedded within the Integrated Community Service and used descripts with people and professionality to provide memory. The team will not be support for in the diagnost of demention languages are compared upon person person growing support to expression inclined, as well as related. Anticipatory Care Resemble in the process. They will work with they stateholders and the wider population to promote knowledge of cognitive impairment and dementals forging a generation that understands and recognises demental to build resilience within communities.	More people and diagnosed earlier, emobiling them to piles for future and are able access early support and care if needed.	Shaun Hough	£116,100	23,390	46,355	46,355	The Demental Link Service to provide support to popoly with Copyther impairment/dementals in interpretation of the properties of the copyther impairment/dementals in the DS still support project to be consecutive of The DS still support integrated Community Services. The DS still support integrated Community Services The DS still support integrated Community Services with demental and to lake confident and competent in supporting indications and but law to confidence and competent in supporting indications and to lake confidence and competent in supporting indications and to lake confidence and competent in supporting indications and the law to confidence and competent in supporting indications and the law to confidence and properties in the still support in supporting indications and supporting indications and supporting indications and support in productions and supporting indications and sup	Social and a contraction templates packed on WCCS in Americand for social and an activation of social and activation of social activation of
10	Primary Care based Community Dements Support Team (COST) Securices	 In a paper common treatment proposes group and the exempt comments support revenues to to the contract, and inclusing the case of the term to include a facility of the contract and including the case of the term to include a facility of the contract and including the contract a	More people and diagnosed earlier, exhibiting them to plan for future and are able access early support and care if needed	Clive Thomas	.653,054		26,527	26,527	the importance of all timely displacing, and allow where to up to help. More people are displaced service, emailing them to place the properties of the properties of the properties of the properties the properties of the properties o	This is cost a new project, between it has the pasted at a corregifier a previous concept. The Community Dementia Support Towns throughout ABASI have being working consists the ideal of a person-cented pathway to disposing domentia and the product operations of the content of the content pathway to disposing domentia and the product operation of the content pathway to disposing plant to see it is a second to the content pathway to disposing pathway through the content pathway to the content pathway t
11	Ty Waunarhwydd Dementia Assesument and Reablement Service - Enhancement, Swansoa	Solution and enhances the existing assessment and readment facilities within 7 procurativelyst Registered Care Horson. Additional unit in Survey below in Intelligent of Lorgon and the assessment and the same of the same o	Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive early person centred care and support which is finable	Cathy Murray	£90,290		45,145	45,145	No. of people returned home Length of time in assessment service under 6 weeks Desirative feedback from service users who have returned home.	Jagust - recruit staff Spenimer - Staffing in place Spenimer - Staffing in place Staffing - Staffing in south sector Mads 3 fac - staff of contract.
12	Common Access Point for Health and Social Care - Regional Model	The example Control Active Short for health and double are as part of the regional intermediate are optimal model and the process addition to the process of	People are sewer of the early spics of deserrois; the importance of a streety diagnosis, and those where it age it have been people and diagnosis and the early spice of the people and agreed earlier; enabling sew to pine for future and as a sew of the early diagnosis and case if a resolution of the earlier and as a sew of the earlier an	Andrea Preddy	£68,706		34,353	34,353	intermediate models for delivering demonstration community leads an investing product are consumed to the control product and a control to move for the control of control con	August - October resortmens period October - March perion in part
13	Dementia Friendly Communities and Homes, Swansea	This will be a provision bound project that aris is bladd more introducer communities for people find, and discharged and the community for some pages possible. If will be provided the community for some pages possible. If will be provided the community for some pages possible. If will be provided to the community for some and the communities of the communities of the communities of the communities. The communities the communities of the communities to be provided to the communities to be provided to the communities of t	The wider population understands the Challenges Exce by people living with deserration	Polity Gordon	£3,000	1,500	1,500	5,000		Sur a suries of engagement owners - Jugust - October 2018: DO's Working group extrabibited - October 2018: DO's Working group extrabibited - October 2018 DO's Downering Farlow); Junearies Action Para produceur Downering - 2018 DO's Downering Farlow); Junearies Action Para produceur Downering - 2019 Materials produced. Materia 2019 Colds scoped and and lags ead for deliberry of 12 of the project
144	Espansion of Demontis awareness and training, Securities	This will report the expectation of an extent determinal assurement and training programme to develop Good Work Framework demonstra standards by internal activation for the control activation of the Control of	Southwest to all is to help them identify to confident and competent in supporting individuals needs port-disprecis	Jeanstte Munn	£20,000	1,500	8,250	10,250	The personal differences that this project test and is this included and consent of people these with demonstrate and their cares. Forestating of Staff who come the contact with the people she was a strated and strated and strategy of the strategy of the strategy of the control of the strategy of the strategy of the control of the strategy of th	Sept. 0x2 2011 processes. Sept. 0x2 2011 proces

Page 24

Appendix

	18D	Making Connections in the Community, Neath Port Talbot	Secretary a first generative factor that fill for fill from the year assisting existing sensitive and organizations to activate encourage involvment, repagament and support sequent linear to be in their own in their foreign. In the control of th	The wider population understands the Challenges faced by people luring with demonstra	Anita Tomaszewski	£19,401		8,314	Maintain independence increased acceleration for the person increased acceleration for the person increased access for advice a information to increasing the number of saled and trained people for the social case workforce. Reducing innecessary hospital admissions.	The project based will meet with the Board of Directors on a monthly busic to monitor the progress, this will be accompanied with projects reports and expenditure. The team delevation place projects which will force on a strategic action place. The team delevation of the control of the co
	19D	Tea and Memories, Neath Port Talbot	The acid Memories is a project to bring ingoline rufferers of diements, their cares and peoples at indication and opinion departs on the project of the proj	Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive early person centred care and support which is flexible	Polly Stone	£12,000	4,200	3,900	Number of people with Dementia diagnosis and management 3,000 Number of people attending with new diagnosis Number of people signposted to other dementia services	The intertractioned, utilities and infronthemore will amount to 1200 per dates. The equates to 15000 over 30 weeks, September 1st 2018 and March 210 2019, (revised from 50 weeks at the project spending resets to end before or on March 1st 2019). The amount required is £12,000 will the additional £2,000 to be opinit or manufacing materials and advertisely. The first exclusion of ground outcomes, will take place during the most not December 2018. Any own/inderspend will be acclosed at this point. The final evolution and report will take place in April 2019 after the project closes. Any more received by the final evolution and report will take place in April 2019 after the project closes. Any more received by the final evolution and report will take place in April 2019 after the project closes. Any own in the final evolution and report will take place in April 2019 after the project closes. Any
	20D	Behavioural Support Service, Neath Port Tathod	The proposals to be a gift are wind to be introduced in even board and related by the property of the delatery of the throughout Support service, property the delatery of the terrelation is about some size of the property of the delatery of the property	live as well as possible for as long as	Dr. Sarah Collier	£108,800	36,266.66	36,266.67	Aim to minimise carer stress Aim for reduction in behavioural and psychiatric symptoms secondary with dementia Aim to improve Quality of life for the person with	Anaport 2018 Secure training from the lamber "Newclash Team" in institute to CAT and the Newclash framework Secure Training from Nice Johnson and Allies Turnin's the ARM Demential training from In rediction to PAC. For Training from Nice Johnson and Allies Turnin's the ARM Demential training from In rediction to PAC. For Training from Nice Johnson and Allies of Turnin's the ARM Demential training from In rediction to PAC. For Case and The Turning For Tur
	21D	The Helm Project, Bridgend and subsequently Western Bay	resourcing view course referred for a patential diagnosis of amendras laker face is falled as lateral and week primary and security primary and security for referred from resourcing and continued provided and security of the security of t	*More popula are diagnosed desting the population of the population of the second and are also accessed. This of diagnosed with desserts and are also accessed. This of diagnosed with desserts and the core and affinishes are also to receive early person centred care and upper which is freable.	Sue Gwyn	£61,395		30,797.50	There will be a 5% increase of tender users receiving adaptions within 12 seeks of referral receiving adaptions within 12 seeks of referral receiving a disproximation of personners and demonstrate a 70% concurrence with the outcomes bearing and of the demonstral intalements, as wildlested by the Demonstral Action Affairs of the Contract of the demonstral and the contract of the demonstral and the contract of the contract of the contract of the demonstral and the contract of	C2 - Retruitment of cell to a secondment apportunities. C3 - Delivery for production workings C4 - Delivery of defined memory assessment puthway to be embedded in service re-design. Production of memory assessment tool list for use by local practitioners
	23D ;	I Mapping of current Dementia services and Evaluation of	This prosocol is to enable collaborative working with Swansoa University and all Dementia care stakeholders, including service users and carers, across Wostern Bays. It imperation that current service provisional across all sectors within Western Bay is imapped to inform fluture direction and identify app in service provision, including identification of where investment washed produce the best outcomes of those at risk of and living with Dementia and their current. The process of continued fluturing own the coming years from Will be implement the Dementia Action Flox is underway, one recurring factor with all current. Will process of continued fluturing own the coming years from Will be implement the Dementia Action Flox is underway, one recurring factor with all current. Will process of continued fluturing own the coming years from Will be implement the Dementia Action Flox is underway, one recurring factor with all current. Will process of continued fluturing own the coming years from Will be implement to implement actions when the more process and continued in the continued of the cont	Research is supported to help us better understand the causes amongsment of dementia and enables people living with dementia, including tramilies and carers, to be co-researchers	Elaine Tanner	£4,000		2,000	Occurrent will be produced outlining current provision of demonsts arrives across Western Bay 2,000 2018/19 Evaluation of outcomes of Demonsts steep-sized Cure Fooding	The research assistant would be recruited in September (once confirmation of funding is received) and the post would cover 1 academic year with support from Swames University.
	25D	Dementia Support Workers, Neath Port Talbot	An established Community Dementia Support Workern Team is already in existence within the Intermediate Care Optimal Model via the Common Access Point in Neural hort Table. The team has already developed a person-centre pathway to displaying elemental by filing the gaps in this service usually faced by those with existing mental hash markers and refeature but the team are developed gaptores fielding and as a supporter manner and this funding will provide them with the availability to scale up existing services and support more people in the Neath Port Taibot community.	More people are diagnosed earlier, enabling them to plan for future and are able access early support and care if needed	Annette Davies	£73,158	24,386	24,386	Project are aware of the early ages of demension, the importance of a timely disposit, and show which the importance of a timely disposit, and show which to get hulp the project and care of a timely disposed earlier, enabling them to 24,386 pile for future and are able access early support and care for the second of the se	Awaiting revised milestons from project lead.
_			Swansea Schemes			£122,605				u.
		1	Western Bay Schemes							

RPB Chair / Leader of NPTCBC CB Jones

RPB Chair / Leader of NPTCBC CB Jones

27-Jul 18

ABMU Finance Director Lymne Hamilton

ABMU Chair Executive Tracey MyNal

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



Report of the Director of Place

External Funding Panel - 3 October 2018

Proposed 3 Year Learning Programme Glynn Vivian Art Gallery Drafting The Future

Purpose: To seek approval to submit a proposal to the Esmee

Fairbairn Collections Fund/Museums Association London for 100% grant aid for a 3 year part-time Learning Programme to bring the Gallery's 'hidden' Works on Paper collection to light by engaging with

participants from low economic and deprived

backgrounds in Swansea - entitled *Drafting the Future*

Policy Framework: Council Policy - Healthy City; Well- being of Future

Generations Act & Corporate Priorities

Consultation: Legal, Finance, and Access to Services.

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that:

1) External Funding panel notes the implications in this report and approves the submission to attract up to £80,200 additional funding, at no cost to the Council.

Report Author: Jenni Spencer-Davies

Finance Officer: Aimee Dyer
Legal Officer: Caritas Adere
Access to Services Officer: Rhian Millar

1.0 Background

- **1.1** Glynn Vivian Art Gallery recently completed a major redevelopment, and is now seeking to expand its work for our communities, by seeking external grant-aid where it incurs no cost for the Council.
- 1.2 Our collection of over 5000 works on paper is bustling with drawings and prints, some of which have never seen the light of day, and not for reasons of conservation. Featuring prominent contemporary and historic artists from Wales and the wider world, the collection is an important part of the history of the gallery and is at present underused and practically invisible to the public, save a few works which are appropriate to be exhibited each year.

2.0 Proposal

- 2.1 We want to breathe new life into the collection, using it to start a conversation about identity and place, through the narratives, context, materials, and techniques depicted in the works. Drawing out, and imparting the contained learning to a new generation of museum patrons, artists and citizens, with drawing and image making as our primary tool through which to investigate our collection and chosen themes.
- 2.2 We want this project to affect those to whom it can make the most difference. The project will target participants from low economic backgrounds, utilising partnerships with Pobl's Youth Housing Project the Foyer (the Gallery's closest neighbours for homeless young people), and through working closely with the Fusion funded "Cultural Community Coordinator" within the local authority to pin point existing groups that can benefit from participation in the activities we are planning. This project would also provide us with an opportunity to further explore the potential of a future partnership with Gwalia housing association owned by Pobl.
- 2.3 For over five hundred years, drawing has been the core practice underpinning artistic education. The reason drawing has remained central to art is its inherent flexibility as a visual language. As a mode of inquiry it is a critically important method of interrogating not just what we see in the world around us, but how we see it. We will be making our proposed project a timely enquiry into our own sense of identity in an ever changing global world.
- 2.4 Through this project we want to;
 - Enhance our understanding of the collection what are the stories that accompany the works on paper.
 - Explore public curation how would the general public choose works that are to be displayed, what is relevant to them and our times?
 - Experience through making exploring the means by which the works were created, through drawing at its core but subsequently through painting and printmaking
 - Provide a legacy for volunteers to assist in the delivery of tours and sessions for the public surrounding the works on paper collection, leaving a long lasting effect on the gallery and ensuring that the collection is visible for the future.

3.0 Equality and Engagement Implications

- 3.1 The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

- 3.2 Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.
- 3.3 An EIA Screening Form has been completed in relation to the funding bid, it identified no Equalities issues in applying for the funding. If approved a separate EIA will be undertaken on the project itself.
- 3.4 The impact of this project will have a two-fold effect of improving awareness, understanding and visibility of our collection, while creating ownership, opportunities for training; accredited creative projects for disadvantaged people, and young people, inspired by the artists and artworks- that our works on paper collection features. This will improve the well-being and employment skills of our communities, especially for young people.

4.0 Financial Implications

- 4.1 Total project costs over 3 years from April 2019 (2019/20, 2020/2021 and 2021/22) ending in March 2022 will be £80,206.
- 4.2 There will be no additional costs for Swansea Council as the grant is 100% funded.

Summary

	Year 1 2019/20 £	Year 2 £	Year 3 £	Year 4 £	Year 5 £	Total £	On- going £
Total project cost:	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Capital	0	0	0				
Revenue	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Grant applied for:							
Capital	0	0					
Revenue	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Match Funding Internal	0	0	0				
Match Funding External	0	0	0				

5.0 Legal Implications

- 5.1 Any offer of grant funding is likely to contain terms and conditions which are binding on the Council and the Council will need to ensure that it complies with the same.
- 5.2 In addition the procurement of any goods and services utilising this grant must comply with the Council's Contract Procedure Rules and European procurement legislation as appropriate.

Background papers: EIA form

Appendices: Appendix 1 - EFP1 Pre-Submission

EFP1 Appendix 1

The City & County of Swansea

EFP1 PRE-SUBMISSION - Notification of Funding Bid to External Funding Panel

THE EFP1 APPLIES TO HARD COPY AND ELECTRONIC SUBMISSIONS

1. Scheme background and details - this is to inform the External Funding Panel of the intention to apply for a new grant proposal -

a. Awarding Body	Esmee Fairbairn Collections Fund/Museums Association London
b. Name and purpose of Scheme/Programme (attach proposal brief)	Esmee Fairbairn Collections Fund/Museums Association London
	The Esmée Fairbairn Collections Fund, run by the Museums Association, funds projects which develop collections to achieve social impact.
	The Fund started in 2011 and 90 projects have so far received grants totaling £6.7m in 14 funding rounds. Between 2017 and 2019 it is offering a total of £3.5m in grants, as well as providing events and resources for the whole sector.
	Our proposal to the Esmee Fairbairn Collections Fund/Museums Association London is for 100% grant aid for a 3 year part-time Learning Programme to bring the Gallery's 'hidden' Works on Paper collection to light by engaging with participants from low economic and deprived backgrounds in Swansea - entitled <i>Drafting the Future</i> .
c. Grant value in Total£	£80,206 over 3 years in total.
d. Grant period / timescale for delivery	1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022
e. CCS acting as Lead Body or Joint Sponsor? Name other Partners.	n/a
f. Detail links to existing schemes at Local, Regional or National level	This project links to the aims of the Museums Association in our role as an accredited museum registered with the UK government's Museums Libraries and Archives Council

g. Detail direct links to Council Policy, including, where appropriate, target areas	The project will directly promote Swansea's Wellbeing statement 2017/18 and Corporate Priorities 2018/22. Glynn Vivian is located in Castle Ward which is a key target area.
h. List key target and proposed performance measures	Work is completed on time and within budget. The completed scheme will result in improved community inclusion at the Glynn Vivian and will improve the well-being of a broad range of participants from low economic backgrounds, and especially young people who are disadvantaged. This will be monitored through our GLO system and surveys.
i. For WEFO schemes confirm that the scheme has been developed in conjunction with the European Unit - Yes /No (delete)	n/a
j. Does this grant require a continuation of funding by the Council after the grant period has expired? This includes current or additional staff costs. Yes / No	No
k. Does the application require match-funding? Yes/No if it does where is this coming from?	No
I. Will the project entail the employment of additional staff and on what basis?	Yes, the grant allows for a part-time project manager/artist educator for 2 days per week over the 3 year period. Ideally we have a present member of staff whose post could be extended, if HR regulations permit. Otherwise we will advertise the post on a fixed term basis, renewable annually.
M. Have you completed an EIA (Equality Impact Assessment) Screening Form (please attach)?	Yes
N. Is a full EIA report required?	No

2. Please complete the following financial information:

	Year 1 2019/20	Year 2	Year 3	Year4	Years	Total	Ongoing
	£	£	£	£	£	£	£
Capital	0	0	0				
Revenue	26,735	26,735	26,735				
Grant applied for:							
Capital	0	0					
Revenue	26,735	26,7351	26,735				
Match Funding Internal	0						
Match Funding External	0	0	0				

3. Please complete the following:

a. Does the funding meet the	Yes.
Council's priorities?	Healthy City, Well- being of Future Generations Act, Corporate priorities
	Safeguarding people from harm Improving education and skills Transforming our economy and infrastructure Tackling poverty
b. What are the expected outcomes and are they clear and achievable? (link to 1h)	The expected outcome is that the project is completed on time and within budget. The completed project will offer empowerment and improved experiences with accredited qualifications for young unemployed or homeless people, transforming their skills through creativity whilst making the gallery's works on paper collection accessible to our audiences and visitors to the Gallery. The project will also develop new volunteers and have a broad, positive social impact in deprived areas of the city.
c. Is there an exit plan? (link to 1j/l)	Yes. We will integrate targeted participants during and after the duration of the project. We will identify potential groups and individuals who will benefit most from their involvement, namely those facing economic hardship (unemployed, BAME people, Neets, people with disabilities and other socially excluded people). We will have offered them training in a variety of transferable skills, and this will help participants who have an interest in progressing further in the arts sector.

d. How is Value for Money being obtained? (procurement/third party arrangements etc)	The work will be formally procured and evaluated, in the same way as the Gallery does with all its funding.
e. What is the governance <i>I</i> management structure for the scheme? - What board/management team will it be reported to?	The management structure is already in place at the Gallery within Cultural Services.
f. What are the major risks and how will they be managed?	The major risk with this scheme is that work will not be completed on time or within budget. This will managed by the Project Manager and the Gallery team to ensure the risk is minimised.

4. Authorisation

	Name/ Signature	Date
Responsible Officer:		
(Group)/Accountant:		
External Funding Panel		
Endorsed /Not Endorsed		

Agenda Item 8



Report of the Chief Legal Officer

External Funding Panel – 3 October 2018

Exclusion Of The Public

Purpo	ose:	To consider whether the Public should be excluded from the following items of business.					
Polic	y Framework:	None.					
Cons	ultation:	Legal.					
Reco	mmendation(s): It is recommended that:					
1)	following ite likely disclos below of Sci the Local Go	e excluded from the meeting during consideration of the m(s) of business on the grounds that it / they involve(s) the sure of exempt information as set out in the Paragraphs listed needule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by overnment (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order to the Public Interest Test (where appropriate) being applied. Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A					
Repo	rt Author:	Democratic Services					
Finan	nce Officer:	Not Applicable					
Legal	l Officer:	Tracey Meredith – Chief Legal Officer (Monitoring Officer)					

1. Introduction

- 1.1 Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007, allows a Principal Council to pass a resolution excluding the public from a meeting during an item of business.
- 1.2 Such a resolution is dependant on whether it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the public were present during that item there would be disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in section 100l of the Local Government Act 1972.

2. Exclusion of the Public / Public Interest Test

- 2.1 In order to comply with the above mentioned legislation, Cabinet will be requested to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the item(s) of business identified in the recommendation(s) to the report on the grounds that it / they involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as set out in the Exclusion Paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.
- 2.2 Information which falls within paragraphs 12 to 15, 17 and 18 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended is exempt information if and so long as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
- 2.3 The specific Exclusion Paragraphs and the Public Interest Tests to be applied are listed in **Appendix A**.
- 2.4 Where paragraph 16 of the Schedule 12A applies there is no public interest test. Councillors are able to consider whether they wish to waive their legal privilege in the information, however, given that this may place the Council in a position of risk, it is not something that should be done as a matter of routine.

3. Financial Implications

3.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.

4. Legal Implications

- 4.1 The legislative provisions are set out in the report.
- 4.2 Councillors must consider with regard to each item of business set out in paragraph 2 of this report the following matters:
- 4.2.1 Whether in relation to that item of business the information is capable of being exempt information, because it falls into one of the paragraphs set out in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended and reproduced in Appendix A to this report.
- 4.2.2 If the information does fall within one or more of paragraphs 12 to 15, 17 and 18 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended, the public interest test as set out in paragraph 2.2 of this report.
- 4.2.3 If the information falls within paragraph 16 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in considering whether to exclude the public members are not required to apply the public interest test but must consider whether they wish to waive their privilege in relation to that item for any reason.

Background Papers: None.

Appendices: Appendix A – Public Interest Test.

Public Interest Test

No.	Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A
12	Information relating to a particular individual.
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 12 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that to make this information public would disclose personal data relating to an individual in contravention of the principles of the Data Protection Act. Because of this and since there did not appear to be an overwhelming public interest in requiring the disclosure of personal data they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.
13	Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 13 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that the individual involved was entitled to privacy and that there was no overriding public interest which required the disclosure of the individual's identity. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.
14	Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 14 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that:
	a) Whilst they were mindful of the need to ensure the transparency and accountability of public authority for decisions taken by them in relation to the spending of public money, the right of a third party to the privacy of their financial / business affairs outweighed the need for that information to be made public; or
	b) Disclosure of the information would give an unfair advantage to tenderers for commercial contracts.
	This information is not affected by any other statutory provision which requires the information to be publicly registered.
	On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.

No.	Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A
15	Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 15 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that whilst they are mindful of the need to ensure that transparency and accountability of public authority for decisions taken by them they were satisfied that in this case disclosure of the information would prejudice the discussion in relation to labour relations to the disadvantage of the authority and inhabitants of its area. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.
16	Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.
	No public interest test.
17	 Information which reveals that the authority proposes: (a) To give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or (b) To make an order or direction under any enactment.
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 17 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that the authority's statutory powers could be rendered ineffective or less effective were there to be advanced knowledge of its intention/the proper exercise of the Council's statutory power could be prejudiced by the public discussion or speculation on the matter to the detriment of the authority and the inhabitants of its area. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.
18	Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
	The Proper Officer (Monitoring Officer) has determined in preparing this report that paragraph 18 should apply. Their view on the public interest test was that the authority's statutory powers could be rendered ineffective or less effective were there to be advanced knowledge of its intention/the proper exercise of the Council's statutory power could be prejudiced by public discussion or speculation on the matter to the detriment of the authority and the inhabitants of its area. On that basis they felt that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when determining the public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.